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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This historic district includes a log and frame house on the north side
of ‘hitaker Mill Road, a rubble stone mill and miller's house on the south
side of Whitaker Mill Road and a single span, bow string arch, pony truss,
ircn bridge which spans Jinters Run near the intersection of 'hitaker Mill Road
and Ring Factory Road. This includes 15.679 acres, more or less.

™,

Whitaker's Mill is a rubble stone structure, two and one-half stories above
grade on the north side, facing the road, three and one-half stories on its south
side. It is four bays in length with a gabled roof, which extends beyond all four
stone walls in a moderately-wide, plain overhang. High in the west gable is a
stone inscribed: M851 F. Yhitaker",

The structure ceased being a grist mill about 1900 and was adapted as a
barn, the milling apparatus removed. In 1961-62 it was adapted as a dwelling
house, its present function. The last adaption was designed by Addison Worthington,
A.T.A,, Architect, of Baltimore.

The original structural system determined the contemporary floor plan,
designed by Addison ‘orthington, A.I.A. The central of the three structural
bays became a large entrance hall with an open staircase rising to the second
floor; the kitchen occupies the southerly third of this bay; the westerly bay
includes a narrow hall leading to the original west door, flanked by a library
and an office; the large easterly bay became the living room. Interior finishes
recall the character of the original; partitions are of vertical boards, the
columns, girders and floor joists are exposed.

Adjacent to the mill, on the west, is the Miller's House. It is a rubble
stone structure one and one-half stories in height, two bays in length, with a ;
gable roof and flush end chirneys of brick. Oriented with its gable-end north, to
the road, each bay comprises a single room. The original entrance to the house is {
in the north end, near the northeast corner; it is balanced with a 6/6 window near
the northwest corner; the two windows of each side are, likewise 6/6; no windows
are in the south gable end. Grade falls nearly a full story towards the south,
allowing the basement or ground floor to be nearly above grade at that end.

An entrance to the basement story is in the southerly bay of the east side and windows
in each other bay light the basement story. Two dormers in each roof slope,
each with 6/6 sash, light the second story.

The stair rises, with winders, between the two rooms. Each room in the
principal story has a fireplace, and the (northerly or southerly or both) room
in the basement has a large fireplace, intended for cooking. There are no fire-
places in the upper story. Interior finishes and details generally date from the
mid-20% century.

A frame west wing, of similar size and shape, paréllels the original structure,
linked to it by a short frame and glass entrance hyphen. Exterior walls are sheathed
in vertical cedar boards and windows are pairs of casements, void of muntins.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This district, which includes “hitaker's Mill, the miller's house, the
frame and log dwelling situated on "Small Parcel,' and the single span iron
bridge crossing Yinters Run, is sisnificant for its historic associations
with the development of the mill industry near /ilna as well as for its natural
beauty.

Grist mills were once a vital element of every farming community. The
natural waterpower available in this region allowesd many mills, but the changes
in agricultural technology, the elimination of so much farmland in favor of
urbanization, and periodic flocding--for mills by their very nature were most
often tuilt in arecas susceptible to flooding--have made them rare structures.

“HITZKER'S MILL represents perhaps the second generation of mills in the
region, built after the region w=s developed to a high state of cultivation,
and, therefore, large and subst~ntial, .

The tract on which the frame and log house stsnds, is one of the oldest
in the county, patented as Dunkeil in 1683 by Daniel Scott, and this was con-
veyed to Gilbert Scott in 1699. Znother early owner was one of the Bonds.
Part of this part of Dunkeil or Duncale, surveyed as 5mall, was associated with
nearby milling operations. A frame and log mill had been in existence prior to
1800, and when it burned, the timbers were used for the construction of a carriage
house. The log section of the present home was the original dwelling, built
either by John YWilson or James Trapnesl. Wilson, in 1783 owned the gristmill and
25 acres of Dunkeil and 18 acres of Small. Trapnell possessed 475 acres of
Dunkeil in that year, and in 1798 served on the petit jury. He was named
overseer of area roads in 1%09. Throughout the 1800's the owmer
of the mill also had the log house. The main unit of this house was most likely
built soon after the mill (1251), by the “hitaker family. In 1878 Martenet
Map lists the owner as F. Whitaker. From 1897 until 1938, :

Bridge #51, which spans "/inters Run at “hitaker Mill Road, is endangered
by proposed road improvements. The bridge was probably constructed in the
late eighteen hundreds and represents one of a few remaining historic iron
bridges in Harford County. A report of a severe flood in 1885 appeared in the Aegis
newspaper of that time and mentioned an iron bridge over Winters Run at Whitaker Mill,
It is assumed that the bridge in question and the one mentioned in the article are one
and the same. '

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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Description continued -

The wing, containing two bedrooms and btath, was designed by James T.
“lollon, Jr., A.I.A., Havre de Crace, Maryland, and constructed in 1975.
The MYagness home, located on the north side o‘ hitaker Mill Road
is situated on ground once knowm as '""mall Parcel. The dwelling consists
of two units, the larger of vhich is a two and one half story bevelled
frame structure with wide tatien trim., The =zmaller unit 1s a one and dite
half story log structure, covered with frame =znd attached to the eastern
side of the larger portion. The larger, more reccent unit is three bays
by four. Windows are six lizhts over six and the doors have elaborate
sidelights and transoms. This section is zrrzanged in a-side through hall
floor plan, two rooms deep.

There are two 6/6 gebled dormers on either side of the roof of the
frame unit and two 4/L gabled dormers on the southern slope of the log
section, with one in the rear. Both units sit on low stone foundations.

A five-bay, shed-roof porch covers most of the western face of the
structure, the roofs are gable flanx-asphalt on the larger unit and wood
shingles on the smaller one. Two brick chimneys, with corbelled caps, are
situated parallel near the wastern end of the main section, while a third
is on the eastern inside-end of the log unit. One unusual feature of the
main building is an intricately patterned arched window, undernesth the
northern gzble., The log wing clso has a shed addition along the rear, with
3 bosrd-and-batten door. Tre stone remnants of a sprinjhouse can also be
found near here.

Bridge 451 is a single span, bow string arch, pony ‘russ, iron bridge
vhich spans "“inters Run near the intersection of '“Mhitaker Mill Road and
Ping Factory Road. This bridge originally had a wooden deck but this was
replaced sometime during the 1ast ten years oy metal grating. The bridge
has a holding capacity of ten tons. The web is triangular in outline and
appear to be ecuilateral not unlike the descrintion of a “arren truss.
Dimensions of Bridge #“51 are as follows:

clearance: 1b feet

length: 72 feet

vidth: 13 feet

The bridce is both pinned and riveted. The Harford County Debartment
of Public "“orks has no informstion on either the construction date or
its engineer.

The zrea include?
the homes and other str
and the heavily wooded

ct nomination consists of

in thiz historic distri
th the howvu, lavms and fields,

uctures associated wi
banks ol YWinters Run.

A pronosal to remove the iron bridge, stiraighten the curve in Yhitaker
1111 Road, and construct a modern wider bridse at a slichtly different
cetlon, w11l destrov the natural beauty of this seiting as well as the
bitat of many wild flora and fauna.
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JAMES THOMAS WOLLON, JR., A.LA.
Architect

620 Craigs' Corner Road

Havre de Grace, Maryland 21078

Office telephone 879-6748 Residence telephone 734-7980

MAGNESS HOUSE

-,

The principal section of the MAGNESS HOUSE is of f}ame

construction, 23 storeys high, three bays in length and it dates

from ca. 1850. Its principal facade is to the south and a one
storey shed-roofed porch extends across that facade. It dominates
a Smaller and older section to the east, 13 storeys high, two bays
in length, of log construction, dating from the late eighteenth or
early nineteenth century. The log section measures approximately
163 by 26 feet (the shorter dimension parallel to the roof ridge);
a porch approximately 6 feet wide extends across its south front,
and an addition or an enclosed porch of the same approximate width
extends across its north front, each with roofs continuous with
but of slightly lower pitch than that over the body of the log
section,

The Older Section

Most of the oldest visible elements date from the second
quarter of the nineteenth century, suggesting this as the con-
struction date. However an earlier absolutely plain and basic
house may have been restyled in the second quarter of the nineteenth
century, Exterior walls are covered with plain weatherboarding,
probably dating from the mid-nineteenth century. Two 4/4 dormers
are in the south roof and one is in the north. An interior brick
chimney rises at the west end of the roof ridge, adjacent to the
taller and later section of the house. The principal entrance is
in the easterly bay of the south front and it contains a door with
six partially-raised panels having small loose echinus mouldings,
probably dating from ca., 1825-1840. Windows have louvred blinds
and 1/1 sash but their size indicates that they were originally
6/6 windows with 8 by 10 inch lights.

Within are two rooms, the dividing partition being approxi-
mately under the roof ridge, All rooms have plain plastered walls
and ceilings and there are no chair rails. Each room has a corner
fireplace beneath the chimney centered on the west wall, The stair-
case is enclosed and winding and it extends partially into each
room at the east end of the dividing partition, the door to the
stair being in the southerly room; a similar door in the northerly
room leads to a closet beneath the stair in which the underside of
the stair construction is exposed; it is assembled with cut nails.
The two doors have six unmoulded, partially-raised panels., Archi-
traves around doors and windows are of two planes with astrigal.

¢
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The south room has a modern mantel with plain pilasters supporting
a plain frieze. The northerly room (fitted as a modern kitchen)
has a mantel with a paneled frieze similar in profile to the panels
of the south front door. Later wainscotting covers the lower area
of the mantel and the opening. A small cupboard is within the di-
agonal chimney breast above and to the right of the firebox below.
The cupboard is enclosed with a door having a single unmoulded,
partially-raised panel, The original north wall is removed to
allow the northerly room to extend into the northerly extension

(an addition or an enclosed porch about six feet wide).

A door leads from each room in the older section to the
adjacent hall in the later section; the doors are immediately adja-
cent to the diagonal chimney breasts, The door from the southerly
room appears to be the earliest detail in the structure, having six
fully-raised panels with intergral ovolo mouldings without fillets.
On the reverse side the identical ovolo profiles surround flat
panels. The doorway from the northerly room is closed with built-in
shelving.

In the upper storey a large room is above the northerly
room and two small rooms are above the southerly room, a typical
early plan. The southwesterly room is reduced to allow a narrow
passage to the side hall of the adjacent later section. Doors have
six unmoulded, partially-raised panels and they are fitted with
Carpenter-type locks. The railing around the stairwell in the
northerly room has a plain tapered newel receiving a plain rail
with rounded top at a wood-pegged mortise-and-tenon joint.

The attic space above is inaccessible and no structural
. details are visible, save the ledge across the gable at the eave
line, created by the top of the log wall which is thicker than
the small studs which form the gable, typical of log construction.
Visible in the stone-walled cellar, the first floor joists are
straight-sawn., The corner fireplaces above are supported by
stone vaulted squinch arches which spring from the walls above

the floor,

The Later Section

E

The later section is of traditional style, closely re-
lated to houses half or three-quarters of a century older. Exterior
walls are covered with plain weatherboards with wide corner boards.
Two brick chimneys rise internally at the west end. The cornice
has a large bed moulding and a wide plain frieze immediately above
the weatherboards corresponding to a wide baseboard below. The
rake cornices rise above eave returns.

The 6/6 windows have narrow beaded frames and louvred
blinds, the latter with operable lower panels. Similar 4/4 windows
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flank the chimneys in the west end., Two dormers are in each roof,
also with 6/6 windows and ovolo eave and rake cornices, the latter
rising from short returns. Centered in the west gable, lighting
the attic storey, is a six-light sash with a wider semi-circular
fanlight above having five radial muntins joined with swagged
muntins near the outer circumference.

The south entrance in the east bay has sidelights and
transom, the latter formerly with leaded glass, now in fragménts
in the cellar. The square columns of the south porch are large,
reflecting the Greek-revival style, and they have large echinus
capitals and tall plinth bases. The porch is accessible by a
flight of wide plain granite steps, each a single slab. The north
entrance has a transom only, no sidelights.

Within is a side hall and a pair of rooms to the west.
The stair rises against the hall partition immediately inside the
north door, a variation from the typical in this region where the
stair usually rises from the principal (usually the southerly)
entrance. Both doors have four panels with partial raises and
loose ogee-with-bevel mouldings; both have Carpenter-type locks
with wrought-iron cases, Architraves throughout the house have
three planes with a beaded inner edge and plain corner blocks.

Double doors formerly closed the wide opening between
the two west parlors, but they are removed. The northerly room
has the more elaborate mantel: plain pilasters with echinus’
capitals (related to the porch columns) supporting a frieze having
a bold ogee shaped soffit, a carved anthemion at the peak. The
mantel in the southerly room has similar plain pilasters support-
. ing a plain frieze. Narrow cupboards are on either side of the south
chimney breast.

The staircase extends to the third floor. A massive
turned walnut or cherry newel at the bottom and painted rectangu-
lar balusters support the round walnut rail. The smaller newels
in the third storey are of cherry and the balusters are of un-
painted walnut; presumably all balusters are of walnut.

The second floor plan is like that of the first, with
a small room at the south end of the hall. Detailing throughout
is similar. The southerly room has no fireplace. The firebox of
the northerly fireplace is not centered within its mantel, the
latter with plain pilasters supporting a plain frieze and thick
shelf,

The single room west of the hall in the third storey has
modern finishes which obscure the original structural elements.

A deep cellar extends beneath the entire house and each .
section has four walls. First floor joists are straight sawn.
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Architectural Significance

The oldest section of the MAGNESS HOUSE is of log con-
struction, unusual in its two-room depth., Typically in this
region houses of this size have roof ridges parallel to the
longer dimension., (If this house can be identified in the 1798
Federal Direct Tax be sure to include a statement to that fact
here, I can word it if required.) ™

The later addition which forms the principal section of
the house today dates from the mid-nineteenth century but its
traditional design is related to styles half to three-fourths of
a century earlier.
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